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a California corporation, Khlomoney Inc., a
California corporation, Kim Kardashian, a
natural person, Kourtney Kardashian, a -
natural person, Khloe Kardashian, a natural

Kh
person and DOES 1-10, inclusive,

Counter-defendants.

FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liability Partnership

OO NN NN RN e = e
OO\]O\UIAUJN'—'O\DOO\]O\U‘

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM




FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liability Partnership

O© 00 ~1 O v B W N =

10

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Casue 2:12-cv-10269-ABC-PJW Document 20 Filed 01/09/13 Page 3 of 95 Page ID #:386

ANSWER

Defendant and Counterclaim Plaintiff By Lee Tillett, Inc. (“Defendant” or
“Tillett”), answers Plaintiff’s Complaint, as follows:

1. Defendant denies the allegations in Paragraph 1 of the Complaint.
Defendant is the owner of the KROMA® mark, which is registered with the United
States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) as registration no. 4079066 in
international class 3 for “Cosmetics.”

2. Defendant admits that this Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this
action. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies the remainder of the
allegations asserted in Paragraph 2 of the Complaint.

3. Defendant admits that the Court has specific jurisdiction over Defendant
and admits the first, second and fourth sentences of Paragraph 3, but denies the
remainder of the allegations asserted in Paragraph 3, including allegations which
pertain to entities other than Defendant and for which Defendant lacks information
necessary to admit or deny, and on this basis denies.

4. Defendant admits that venue is proper in this district due to one or more
of the factors stated in Paragraph 4.

5 Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
asserted in Paragraph 5 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.

6. Defendant admits that Tillett is a Florida corporation with its principal
place of business at 730 Maitland Ave., Altamonte Springs, FL. 32701.

7. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
asserted in Paragraph 7 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.

8. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
asserted in Paragraph 8 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than

Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.

1
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1 9. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
2 || asserted in Paragraph 9 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
3 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.

4 10. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations

5 || asserted in Paragraph 10 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than

6 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.

7 11.  Upon information and belief, Defendant admits the allegations asserted in

8 || paragraph 11 of the Complaint.

9 12. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
10 || asserted in Paragraph 12 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
11 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.

12 13. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
13 || asserted in Paragraph 13 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
14 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
15 14. Deny.
16 15. Upon information and belief, Defendant admits that the Kardashians have
17 || appeared in the television shows listed in Paragraph 15 of the Complaint. Except as
18 || expressly admitted, Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted in
19 || Paragraph 15.
20 16. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
21 || asserted in Paragraph 16 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
22 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
23 17. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
24 || asserted in Paragraph 17 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
25 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
26 18. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
27 || asserted in Paragraph 18 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
28 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
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1 19. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
2 || asserted in Paragraph 19 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
3 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
4 70. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
5 || asserted in Paragraph 20 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
6 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
7 21. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
8 || asserted in Paragraph 21 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
9 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
10 22, Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
11 || asserted in Paragraph 22 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
12 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the sarﬂe.
13 23. Deny.
14 24. Deny.
15 25. Deny.
16 76. Defendant admits that Tillett is owned and operated by Lee Tillett; that
17 || Lee Tillett is, among other things, a professional celebrity makeup artist; and that Lee
18 || Tillett developed the KROMA® cosmetics line. Except as expressly admitted,
19 || Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted in Paragraph 26 of the
20 || Complaint.
21 27. Defendant admits that Lee Tillett developed the KROMA® cosmetics
22 || line; that Lee Tillett, among others, markets the KROMA® cosmetics line; that Lee
23 il Tillett has been involved in the cosmetics industry for over 20 years; and that Tillett is
24 || a Florida corporation with its principal place of business at 730 Maitland Ave.,
25 || Altamonte Springs, FL 32701. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies the
26 || remainder of the allegations asserted in Paragraph 27 of the Complaint.
27 28.  Admit.
28 79. Defendant admits that Defendant has used Lee Tillett’s name in
ANSWER AND C30UNTERCLAIM
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connection with some of Defendant’s products and that Defendant’s products are sold,
inter alia, online at www.kromamakeup.com. Except as expressly admitted,
Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted in Paragraph 29 of the
Complaint.

30. Defendant admits that Defendant has used Lee Tillett’s name in
connection with some of Defendant’s products and that Defendant’s products are sold,
inter alia, online at www.kromamakeup.com. Except as expressly admitted,
Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted in Paragraph 30 of the
Complaint.

31. Deny.

37, Defendant admits that counsel for Defendant sent Plaintiff a cease and
desist letter on or about June 28, 2012. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant
denies the remainder of the allegations asserted Paragraph 32 of the Complaint,
including Plaintiff’s characterizations of the contents of the letter, which has not been
attached to the Complaint and which speaks for itself.

33, Defendant admits that counsel for Plaintiff sent a letter to Defendant in
response to Defendant’s June 28 letter on or about July 18, 2012. Except as expressly
admitted, Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted Paragraph 33 of
the Complaint, including Plaintiff’s characterizations of the contents of the letter,
which has not been attached to the Complaint and which speaks for itself.

34. Defendant admits that counsel for Defendant sent a letter to Plaintiff in
response to Plaintiff's July 18 letter on or about October 26, 2012. Except as
expressly admitted, Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted
Paragraph 34 of the Complaint, including Plaintiff’s characterizations of the contents
of the letter, which has not been attached to the Complaint and which speaks for itself.

35. Defendant admits that the parties have been unable to reach a mutually
agreeable resolution of their dispute. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies
the remainder of the allegations asserted Paragraph 35 of the Complaint.

4

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM




FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liability Partnership

Cashl; 2:12-cv-10269-ABC-PJW Document 20 Filed 01/09/13 Page 7 of 95 Page ID #:390

1 36. Deny.
2 37. Deny.
3 38. Deny.
4 39. Deny.
5 40. Deny.
6 41. Deny.
7 42. Defendant lacks information necessary to confirm or deny the allegations
8 || asserted in Paragraph 42 of the Complaint, which pertain to entities other than
9 || Defendant, and on this basis denies the same.
10 43. Deny.
11 44. Deny.
12 45. Deny.
13 46. Deny.
14 47. Deny.
15 48. Deny.
16 49. Deny.
17 50. Deny.
18 51. Deny.
19 52. Deny.
20 53. Deny.
21 54. Defendant admits that Tillett has used the phrase “by Lee Tillett” on
22 || some of Tillett’s goods, packaging and/or promotional materials. Except as expressly
23 || admitted, Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted Paragraph 54 of
24 || the Complaint.
25 55. Deny.
26 56. Deny.
27 57. Deny.
28 58. Deny.
5
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM




FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liability Partnership

O 0 3 O W»n s W D -

10

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Cast 2:12-cv-10269-ABC-PJW Document 20 Filed 01/09/13 Page 8 of 95 Page ID #:391

59. Defendant repeats and incorporates by reference its answers to
paragraphs 1-58 above as though fully set forth herein.

60. Defendant admits that an actual case and controversy exists between
Plaintiff and Defendant. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies the
remainder of the allegations asserted Paragraph 60 of the Complaint.

61. Defendant admits that Plaintiff does not have the right to use the term
KHROMA in connection with its cosmetics line and that Plaintiff’'s use of the
KHROMA mark infringes Defendant’s rights in the KROMA® mark. Except as
expressly admitted, Defendant denies the remainder of the allegations asserted

Paragraph 60 of the Complaint.

62. Deny.
63. Admit.
64. Admit.

65. Defendant admits that Plaintiff seeks the relief described in Paragraph 65
but denies the remainder of the allegations in Paragraph 65 and denies that Plaintiff is
entitled to any relief whatsoever.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

As separate and additional defenses, upon information and belief, Defendant

alleges as follows:
FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Failure to State a Claim)

The Complaint fails to allege facts sufficient to state a claim for relief.
SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Lack of Standing)

Plaintiff's claims are barred because Plaintiff lacks standing to assert the claim
in the Complaint.
THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Laches)
6
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Plaintiff is barred by the equitable doctrine of laches from asserting any of the
claims for relief alleged in the Complaint.
FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Unclean Hands)

Plaintiff is barred by the equitable doctrine of unclean hands from asserting any
of the claims for relief alleged in the Complaint.

FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Estoppel)

Plaintiff’s claim is barred by the equitable doctrine of estoppel from asserting
any claims for relief alleged in the Complaint.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Waiver)

Plaintiff’s claim is barred by the equitable doctrine of waiver from asserting any
of the claims for relief alleged in the Complaint.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Justification)
All actions by Defendant of which Plaintiff complains in the Complaint were
justified and Defendant has at all times acted in good faith.
EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Invalidity or Unenforceability of Trademarks)

Plaintiff’s claims are barred because Plaintiff’s purported trademarks are invalid

and/or unenforceable.

NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Injury)
Plaintiff is barred from obtaining any relief from Defendant because Plaintiff
has suffered no injury or damage as a result of any act or conduct by Defendant.
TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Failure to Mitigate)

7
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Plaintiff’s claim is barred, in whole or in part, by Plaintiff’s failure to mitigate
its alleged damages.
ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Reservation)

As to the entire Complaint, Defendant presently has insufficient knowledge or
information on which to form a belief as to whether it has any additional, as yet
unstated, defenses to the Complaint. Defendant reserves its rights to assert additional

defenses if appropriate.
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COUNTERCLAIMS
Defendant and counterclaimant By Lee Tillett, Inc., by and through counsel

hereby alleges upon information and belief against counter-defendants BOLDFACE
Licensing + Branding (“Boldface”), Boldface Group, Inc., Kimsaprincess Inc.,
2Die4Kourt, Khlomoney Inc., Kim Kardashian, Kourtney Kardashian, Khloe
Kardashian and DOES 1-10, inclusive (collectively, the “Counter-defendants™) as
follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This trademark infringement action arises out of the intentional, willful,

O© 00 3 & W»n B W N -

10 || malicious and oppressive conduct of Boldface and the other Counter-defendants in

11 || disregarding the rights of By Lee Tillett, Inc. (“Tillett”) in the selection and use of the
12 || KHROMA mark in connection with the launch of Boldface’s celebrity-endorsed and
13 || licensed cosmetics line, launched in June 2012 in association with Kim, Kourtney, and
14 || Khloe Kardashian (collectively, the “Kardashian Sisters”). The Counter-defendants
15 || chose to use the KHROMA mark in connection with the Kardashian-sponsored

16 || cosmetics line despite the fact that they knew in advance that Tillett’s mark

17 || KROMA® was registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office

18 || (“USPTO”) for use in connection with cosmetics. Boldface, the Kardashians, and the
19 || other Counter-defendants have advertised and promoted the KHROMA name in a way
20 |l that has so saturated the market that potential customers are likely to be misled into

21 || thinking that Tillett’s cosmetic line originates from Boldface, and that Tillett’s

79 || KROMA® mark is associated with the Kardashian Sisters. The conduct of Boldface,
23 || the Kardashians and the other Counter-defendants has wrongfully interfered with

24 || Tillett’s existing and prospective business relationships, and has caused actual

25 || confusion regarding the origin of Tillett’s KROMA® products.

26 2. The Kardashian Sisters, through their contractual and licensing

27 || arrangements with Boldface, have a direct pecuniary interest in the success of

28 || KHROMA cosmetics product line, have materially benefitted from the launch of the

9
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM




FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liability Partnership

CaseJ 2:12-cv-10269-ABC-PJW Document 20 Filed 01/09/13 Page 12 of 95 Page ID #:395

1 || KHROMA cosmetics product line and have the ability to control and prevent the

2 || infringing conduct complained of herein. To date, Boldface has already paid the

3 || Kardashian Sisters a $1,000,000 non-refundable, up-front royalty to license their

4 || names and likenesses in connection with the KHROMA mark and granted them a

5 || cashless warrant for 10,000,000 shares of BGI stock, exercisable at any time on or

6 || before May 22, 2022. The Kardashian Sisters, through their contractual and licensing

7 || arrangements with Boldface, have the power to prevent the infringement of the

8 || KROMA® mark by ceasing to use the KHROMA mark on their KHROMA . To date,

9 || the Kardashian Sisters have failed to prevent the use of KHROMA mark.
10 3. Two years prior to Boldface’s KHROMA cosmetics product launch,
11 |l Tillett and Kim Kardashian’s representatives discussed a possible product placement
12 || deal regarding Tillett’'s KROMA® cosmetics line on a reality television show called
13 || The SPINdustry being produced by Kim Kardashian. Tillett and Kim Kardashian’s
14 || representatives also discussed the possibility of aligning KROMA® cosmetics with
15 || Kim Kardashian for certain of the public appearances. Tillett and Kim Kardashian’s
16 || representatives never executed an agreement concerning the product placement of
17 || KROMA® cosmetics or alignment with Kim Kardashian. Tillett and the Counter-
18 || defendants do not have any agreements with each other relating to the KROMA®
19 || mark, nor has Tillett ever consented to any of the Counter-defendants’ use of the
20 || KROMA® mark.
21 4.  In September 2012, about two months prior to the launch of the
22 || KHROMA cosmetics line, the USPTO issued office actions rejecting Boldface’s
23 || trademark registration applications for KARDASHIAN KHROMA and KHROMA
24 || BEAUTY BY KOURTNEY, KIM AND KHLOE. The USPTO issued office actions
25 || rejecting Boldface’s applications to register the Boldface KRHOMA Marks on the
26 || basis of a likelihood of confusion with Tillett’s prior existing KROMA® mark.
27 5 Boldface’s use of word KHROMA is destroying the brand identity and
28 || value of the KROMA® mark for Tillett. Boldface’s world-wide product launch

10
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM




FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liability Partnership

Cas¢

O 00 ~3 O W»n W D -

l\)l\)l\)l\)[\)l\)l\)l\)[\)»—au—-»—au—tv—d»—a»—-p—s»—v—l
OO\]O\M-&WN'—‘O\OOO\IO\M#UJN'—‘O

2:12-cv-10269-ABC-PJW Document 20 Filed 01/09/13 Page 13 of 95 Page ID #:396

media blitz and the high-profile of the Kardashian Sisters, has caused KROMA'’s
consumers and distributors to mistakenly believe that Tillett’s KROMA® cosmetic
line is associated with the Kardashian Sisters. This false association is damaging to
BTLI and threatens to destroy its business.

6. This case arises from both state and federal claims, including trademark
infringement in the form of reverse confusion, and unfair competition. Tillett seeks
permanent injunctive relief preventing the Counter-defendants from using the
KROMA® mark and all derivatives, as well as damages, treble damages, Counter-
defendants’ profits, corrective advertising damages, attorneys’ fees and punitive
damages arising from the Counter-defendants’ willful, unlawful, intentional,
malicious, oppressive, unfair and misleading conduct.

PARTIES

7 Counterclaim Plaintiff By Lee Tillet, Inc. is a Florida corporation located
at 730 Maitland Avenue, Altamonte Springs, FL 32701.

8. Counter-defendant BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding is a Nevada
corporation with its principal place of business located at 1309 Pico Blvd., Suite A,
Santa Monica, CA 90405. BOLDFACE Licensing + Branding is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Boldface Group, Inc. (“BGI”) and is controlled and dominated by BGI.
At all times described herein there is a unity of interest between Boldface and BGI.
At all times described herein Boldface and BGI were alter egos with each other and
Boldface acted as BGI’s agent.

9.  Counter-defendant Boldface Group, Inc. is a Nevada corporation with its
principal place of business located at 1309 Pico Blvd., Suite A, Santa Monica, CA
90405. BGI is an “over-the-counter” (“OTC”) publicly-traded company, whose
ticker symbol is BLBK.

10.  Counter-defendant Kimsaprincess Inc. is a California corporation located
on 21731 Ventura Blvd. #300, Los Angeles, CA 91364. Kimsaprincess Inc. is

majority owned, controlled, and dominated by Kim Kardashian for the benefit of Kim
11
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1 | Kardashian. At all times described herein there was a unity of interest and ownership
2 || between Kim Kardashian and Kimsaprincess Inc. At all times described herein Kim
3 || Kardashian and her namesake company were alter egos of each other and
4 || Kimsaprincess Inc. acted as Kim Kardashian’s agent.

5 11. Counter-defendant Kim Kardashian is a natural person with a residence

6 || and business located in Los Angeles County, California.

7 12.  Counter-defendant 2Die4Kourt is a California corporation located at

8 || 21731 Ventura Blvd. #300, Los Angeles, CA 91364. 2Die4Kourt is majority owned,

9 || controlled, and dominated by Kourtney Kardashian for the benefit of Kourtney
10 || Kardashian. At all times described herein there was a unity of interest and ownership
11 || between Kourtney Kardashian and 2Die4Kourt. At all times herein, Kourtney
12 || Kardashian and her namesake company were alter egos of each other and 2Die4Kourt
13 || acted as Kourtney Kardashian’s agent.
14 13. Counter-defendant Kourtney Kardashian is a natural person with a
15 || residence and business located in Los Angeles County, California.
16 14. Counter-defendant Khlomoney Inc. is a California corporation located at
17 {l 21731 Ventura Blvd. #300, Los Angeles, CA 91364. Khlomoney Inc. is majority
18 || owned, controlled and dominated by Khloe Kardashian for the benefit of Khloe
19 || Kardashian. At all times described herein there is a unity of interest and ownership
20 || between Khloe Kardashian and Khlomoney Inc. At all times described herein Khloe
21 || Kardashian and her namesake company were alter egos of each other and Khlomoney
22 || Inc. acted as Khloe Kardashian’s agent.
23 15. Counter-defendant Khloe Kardashian is a natural person with a residence
24 || and business located in Los Angeles County California.
25 16. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or
26 || otherwise, of Counter-defendants sued herein as Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are
27 || unknown at the present time and Plaintiff therefore sues said Does and each of them
28

12
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1 || by such fictitious names. If necessary, Plaintiff will seek leave of the Court to amend
2 || this complaint to allege their true names and capacities when they are ascertained.

3 17.  Unless otherwise indicated herein, on information and belief, each of

4 || Does 1 through 10, inclusive, participated in the activities described herein and

5 || rendered material assistance to the other Counter Defendants in the actions alleged

6 || herein, conspired and agreed with and aided and abetted one or more of the other

7 || Defendants, and at all relevant times each of the Defendants was the principal or

8 || agent, alter ego, partner, joint venturer, co-venturer, co-conspirator, independent

9 || contractor, servant and/or employee of at least one other of the other Counter
10 || Defendants, and all of the acts performed by them or omissions alleged herein were
11 || made in the course and scope of their employment, agency, partnership, joint venture,
12 || conspiracy or other such relationship and with knowledge, consent, approval and/or
13 || ratification of the principals, and each of them. Unless otherwise indicated herein,
14 || each of the parties herein named as Does 1 through 10 is responsible in some manner
15 || or fashion, and is by contract or otherwise, the successor, assign, joint venturer, co-
16 || venturer, co-conspirator, partner or alter ego of one or more of the Defendants, or was
17 || otherwise involved with the other Counter Defendants in the wrongdoing alleged
18 || herein, and by virtue of such capacity, assumed the obligations herein owed by
19 || Defendants, and is liable and responsible for the damages on the facts alleged herein
20 || and for all the relief sought.
21 18.  Unless otherwise indicated herein, on information and belief, there has
29 || existed at all relevant times a unity of interest and ownership between each of the
23 || Does 1 through 10 named herein, and at least one or more of the Counter Defendants,
24 || such that any individuality and separateness between them has ceased and each is the
25 || “alter ego” of the other, and that adherence to the fiction of the separate existence of
26 || each Doe Counter Defendant as an entity or individual distinct from one or more of
27 || the Counter Defendants would therefore permit an abuse of the corporate privilege
28 || and would sanction fraud and promote injustice.

13
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19. Unless otherwise indicated herein, on information and belief, there has

2 || existed at all relevant times a joint venture between each of the Does 1 through 10

3 || named herein, and at least one or more of the Counter Defendants, such that each of

4 || the Does 1 through 10 and at least one or more of the Counter Defendants shared a

5 || common business interest, shared control, profits and losses arising from such

6 || common business interests, and therefore are liable and responsible for the damages

7 || on the facts alleged herein and for all relief sought.

8 JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9 20. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 15
10 || U.S.C. §§ 1114, 1116, 1121, 1125(a), 28 U.S.C. §§ 1338 and 1367.
11 21.  This Court has general personal jurisdiction over the Counter-defendants,
12 || because all Counter-defendants reside and do business in this District. This Court has

[
(98}

specific personal jurisdiction over the Counter-defendants because their wrongful

—
=N

conduct as alleged herein occurred in this District.
22.  Venue is proper in the Central District of California pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)(1) and 1391(b)(2).
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

—_—
5 &
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18 23.  Tillett is a Florida headquartered cosmetics company founded by Algaia
19 || Lee Tillett. Prior to creating Tillett, Ms. Tillett had been a make-up artist known for
20 || her work with celebrities. The KROMA® cosmetics product line grew organically
21 || out of Ms. Tillett’s business as a make-up artist.

22 24.  Tillett filed an application to register the trademark KROMAR® for

73 || cosmetics with the United States Patent on or about November 12, 2010.

24 25 The USPTO issued registration no. 4079066 to Tillett for KROMAR® in
25 || connection with cosmetics on or about January 3, 2012. See Exhibit A attached

26 || hereto.

27 26. Tillett has used the mark KROMA® in U.S. commerce continuously
28 || since its registration issued. Tillett is a cosmetics company based in Altamonte,

14
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1 |l Florida. Its KROMA® brand is known for using all-natural ingredients to produce
2 || luxurious, rich botanical makeup products. The KROMA® line is produced in the
3 || United States and distributed in the United States and Europe. KROMA® products
4 || have been featured in gift baskets at the Oscars, Emmys, Cannes Film Festival and at
5 || entertainment and fashion events around the world.
6 27.  On or about May 2010, representatives for Tillett and TLK Fusion were
7 || engaged in discussions regarding the possible product placement of the KROMA®
8 || cosmetics line on the television reality show special The SPINdustry that was
9 || scheduled to air on E! Entertainment Television following an episode of Keeping Up
10 || with the Kardashians. The SPINdustry was a television show being produced by Kim
11 || Kardashian. TLK Fusion acted as Kim Kardashian’s agent in gaining product
12 || placements for the show. Tillett and TLK Fusion never reached an agreement and the
13 || KROMA® cosmetics line did not appear on the show.
14 28.  Tillett and TLK Fusion also discussed the possibility of aligning the
15 || KROMA® brand with Kim Kardashian for certain of Kim Kardashian’s public
16 || appearances. The parties did not reach agreement.
17 29.  Boldface was founded on or about April 26, 2012 by Nicole Ostoya. Its
18 || articles of incorporation indicate it was capitalized with $1000. Mr. Ron Altbagh and
19 || Ms. Ostoya are directors of Boldface. Ms. Ostoya is also Boldface’s President and
20 || CEO.
21 30. At the time of its formation, the primary asset that Boldface had was its
22 || relationship with the Kardashian Sisters and the prospect of a licensing, personal
23 || services and endorsement deal with the Kardashian Sisters through the Kardashian
24 || Entities.
25 31. BGI is the parent company of Boldface, which it acquired as the end
26 || result of a reverse merger. BGI, formerly known as Max Cash Media, Inc., amended
27 || and restated its articles of incorporation with the state of Nevada on or about May 21,
28 || 2012. It is a publicly traded company traded over-the-counter (“OTC”). Its ticker
15
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symbol is BLBK. Its articles of incorporation indicate it was capitalized with
$310,000. Mr. Altbagh and Ms. Ostoya are directors of BGL Ms. Ostoya is BGI’s
President and CEO.

32 Boldface and BGI refer to themselves together as the “Company” in their
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

33.  The KHROMA cosmetic line is the primary asset of Boldface and BGI.
Without the KHROMA cosmetic line and the attendant licensing, personal services
and endorsement arrangements it has with the Kardashian Sisters, Boldface and BGI
would run soon out of money and go out of business. Boldface’s and BGI’s business
relationship with the Kardashian Sisters is essential to Boldface’s and BGI’s business
plans and survival.

34. Kim, Kourtney and Khloe Kardashian are known for their appearances in
reality television series, celebrity gossip magazines, endorsements and licensing deals,
and general presence in popular culture of celebrity. Each of the Kardashian sisters
formed an entity named after themselves in order to run their businesses associated
with their celebrity and attempt to limit liability associated with such businesses: Kim
formed, owns, and controls Kimsaprincess, Inc., Kourtney formed, owns, and controls
2Die4Kourt, and Khloe formed, owns, and controls Khlomoney Inc. Kimsaprincess
Inc., 2Die4Kourt and Khlomoney Inc. (collectively, the “Kardashian Entities”) are run
solely for the benefit of their respective Kardashian owners.

35 The Kardashian Entities were not capitalized with material amounts of
money at the time of their creation. Rather, the primary asset of each of Kardashian
Entities is the ability to enter into licensing and endorsement agreements on behalf of
each respective sisters. Without the ability to enter into such licensing and personal
service agreements on behalf of the Kardashian Sisters, the Kardashian Entities would
not make any money and have no value.

36. Each Kardashian Sister has the ability to supervise and approve of any
deal that her respective namesake Kardashian Entity enters into and any deal requiring

16
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her to perform any service, such as a personal service. Each Kardashian Sister
ultimately controls and is responsible for her own respective name and likeness and
the products and services it is associated with. Each Kardashian Sister is closely
associated with her respective namesake entity and anyone who wants to doa
licensing deal with Kardashian Sister must do so through each respective Kardashian
Sister’s namesake entity. Each Kardashian Sister dominates her respective
Kardashian Entity to such a degree that each Kardashian Entity is the alter ego of its

namesake Kardashian Sister. Each Kardashian Sister is a partner and joint venturer
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with her respective namesake Kardashian Entity in each deal that her respective

10 || namesake Kardashian Entity executes.

11 37. Kimsaprincess Inc. is the agent for Kim Kardashian for each licensing,
12 || personal services, and endorsement deal Kimsaprincess Inc. enters into.

13 38. 2Die4Kourt is the agent for Kourtney Kardashian for each licensing,

14 || personal services, and endorsement deal 2Die4Kourt enters into.

15 39. Khlomoney Inc. is the agent for Khloe Kardashian for each licensing,
16 || personal services, and endorsement deal Khlomoney Inc. enters into.

17 40. On or about May 21, 2012, the Kardashian Sisters, through the

18 || Kardashian Entities, entered into a four (4) year licensing agreement with Boldface
19 || through their respective licensing entities (Kimsaprincess Inc., 2Die4Kourtney, and
20 || Khlomoney Inc.) whereby the Kardashian Sisters would license their name and

21 |l likeness to Boldface for use in association with a cosmetics line in return for royalty
22 || payments and stock warrants. The Kardashian Sisters retain approval rights for how
73 || their name and likeness is used under the agreement. The Kardashian Sisters retained
24 || approval rights for the names and marks of the cosmetics line with which the

25 || Kardashian Sisters’ names and likenesses would be associated.

26 41. Boldface agreed to pay the Kardashian Sisters guaranteed minimum

27 || royalty payments of $4,686,125 or $5,206,900 depending on launch date of various
28 || products. Boldface paid the Kardashian Sisters a $1,000,000 non-refundable advance
17
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royalty on or about September 30, 2012. In addition, BGI issued the Kardashian
Sisters 10,000,000 cashless warrants exercisable at any time within ten (10) years of
issuance. As of January 7, 2013 the BGIs stock price varied between 18 cents and 36
cents during the last 52 week range. This valuation would make the Kardashian
Sisters’ stock warrants worth between $1.8 million and $3.6 million.

47. The Kardashian Sisters have approval rights over the words, names and
marks that are used in association with their names and likenesses.

43. Kim Kardashian proposed that the Boldface cosmetics line sold in
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connection with the Kardashian Sisters licensing deal be called KHROMA. Kourtney
10 |l Kardashian and Khloe Kardashian agreed with and ratified Kim Kardashian’s

11 || proposal. Boldface and BGI accepted and ratified the Kardashian Sisters’ proposal by
12 || proceeding to attempt to register the KHROMA marks with the USPTO and using the
13 || KHROMA mark in commerce in connection with cosmetics.

14 44. Prior to commencing use of the KHROMA marks, Boldface caused its
15 || attorneys to perform a trademark search. The trademark search indicated that

16 || KROMA® mark was owned by Tillett and registered in international class 3 for

17 || cosmetics.

18 45. There are no other marks registered in international class 3 for cosmetics
19 || that sound like the KROMA® mark and begin with the letter K.
20 46. The heart of the Counter-defendants’ mark is the word KHROMA. 1t is

21 || important to Counter-defendants that they use the word KHROMA- rather than

72 || CHROMA — because it begins with the letter K. Boldface never attempted to register
23 || the mark KHROMA by itself because Boldface’s attorneys knew that such a mark

24 || would be rejected on the basis of Tillett’s prior existing KROMA® mark. Instead,

25 || Boldface attempted to distinguish its mark from KROMAR® in its USPTO applications
26 || by surrounding it with other words, hence the applications for KARDASHIAN

27 || KHROMA and KHROMA BEAUTY BY KOURTNEY, KIM AND KHLOE.

28

18
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47. At the time of the filing of trademark registration applications for the
KHROMA Marks in June 2012, Boldface acted recklessly, intentionally and with
disregard for the trademark rights of others when it filed the trademark registration
applications the Boldface KHROMA marks and commenced using the Boldface
KHROMA marks in commerce, notwithstanding Boldface and each of the Counter-
defendants’ express knowledge of Tillett’s KROMA® mark.

48. Despite Boldface’s efforts to distinguish its mark from KROMA® on its
applications by adding additional words around KHROMA, the USPTO issued office
actions rejecting Boldface’s applications for KARDASHIAN KHROMA and
10 || KHROMA BEAUTY BY KOURTNEY, KIM AND KHLOE. See Exhibits B and C
11 || attached hereto.

12 49. The word KHROMA is the most prominent part of Boldface’s mark. The
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13 || word KHROMA is the only word consistently used to describe Boldface’s cosmetics
14 || line across all media and packaging. Sometimes the cosmetics line is referred to as
15 || “Khroma Beauty.” The current iteration of Boldface’s packaging as used in U.S.

16 || commerce in connection with cosmetics features the word KHROMA in giant font

17 || that is at least twice as big as the font used for any surrounding words. An example
18 || of the current iteration of the KHROMA packaging is shown in Figure 1 on page 3 of
19 || Boldface’s Complaint for Declaratory Judgment. The packaging shown does not use
20 || the marks KARDASHIAN KHROMA or KHROMA BEAUTY BY KOURTNEY,

21 || KIM AND KHLOE.

22 50. Counter-defendants knew of the KROMA® brand prior to commencing
23 || their use of the infringing mark KHROMA. Counter-defendants knew that Plaintiff
24 || would be damaged at the time they began to use the KHROMA mark.

25 51. Counter-defendants deliberately chose to use the mark KHROMA despite
26 || their knowledge of Tillett’s prior use of the KROMA® mark and knew that

27 || Boldface’s use of the KHROMA mark would mislead and confuse consumers into

28 || believing that Tillett’s KROMA® cosmetics line was associated with Boldface, BGI

19
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and the Kardashian Sisters because of the media blitz that Boldface planned in
conjunction with the launch of its product line.

57 Tillett first became aware of Boldface’s intention to use of the
KHROMA mark in connection with cosmetics on or about June 2012.

53.  Tillett, through its attorney, sent Boldface a cease and desist letter on or
about June 28, 2012. Boldface informed the rest of the Counter-defendants of Tillett’s
claims on or about that same date. Tillett and Boldface subsequently exchanged

correspondence and communications in an attempt to settle the dispute but were
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unable to reach an agreement.

10 54. Boldface continued to use the KROMA® mark in connection with

11 || cosmetics thereafter, knowing that Tillett would be damaged by such use.

12 55 Since the media blitz surrounding the launch of Boldface’s KHROMA,
13 || there have already been instances of actual consumer confusion. Tillett has fielded
14 || several inquiries from persons inquiring whether KROMA® was associated with the
15 || Kardashian Sisters.

16 56. Tillett has been damaged by Boldface’s use of the KHROMA mark and
17 |l will continue to be damaged by Boldface’s use of the KHROMA mark until such time
18 || as Counter-defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark permanently ceases.

19 57.  Each of the Counter-defendants approved of and ratified Boldface’s

20 || actions with respect to the selection, development and implementation of the use of

21 || the KHROMA mark in commerce in connection with cosmetics.

22 58. Each of the Counter-defendants benefited financially from the sales of
23 || products labeled with the KHROMA mark.
24 59. Each the Counter-defendants had the ability to prevent the KHROMA

25 || marks from being used on cosmetics and failed to stop the infringement of the

76 || KROMA® mark even after being notified of Tillett’s claims.

27 FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
28 TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT PURSUANT TO 15 U.S.C. 1114(a)(1)
20
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1 [Against All Counter-defendants]
2 60. Tillett repeats and realleges the allegations made in paragraphs 1 through
3 || 59 as if fully set forth herein.
4 61. The KROMA® mark is owned by Tillett and registered with the USPTO
5 || as registration no. 4079066 in international class 3 for “cosmetics.” The KROMA®
6 || mark is of great value to Tillett. Tillett and/or its predecessors in interest have used
7 || the mark continuously in U.S. commerce in connection with the KROMA® cosmetics
8 || line since at least 2004. Such use has occurred continuously and prior to Counter-
9 || defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark beginning in 2011.
10 62. Counter-defendants use the KHROMA mark in U.S. commerce in
11 | connection with the sale of their cosmetics products. This use is not and has never
12 || been authorized by Tillett.
13 63. Counter-defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark is likely to cause
14 || consumer confusion, or to cause mistake and/or deceive consumers as to the
15 || affiliation, connection, or association of Tillett and Tillett’'s KROMA® cosmetic
16 || products line with the Counter-defendants’ KHROMA cosmetics products line.
17 64. The Counter-defendants used the KHROMA mark as alleged herein
18 || notwithstanding their prior knowledge of Tillett’s rights to the registered KROMA®
19 || mark.
20 65. The Counter-defendants used the KHROMA mark in bad faith, knowing
21 || that it would cause consumer confusion, mistake and/or deception.
22 66. The Counter-defendants each approved of, ratified and took acts in
23 || furtherance of the unauthorized use the KHROMA mark and each of the other actions
24 || complained of herein.
25 67. Each of the Counter-defendants has financially benefited from the sale of
26 || cosmetic products labeled with the KHROMA mark.
27 68. Each of the Kardashian Sisters is a moving, active and conscious force
28 || behind the infringement of the KROMA® mark, and each has directly financially
21
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benefitted from the infringement.

69. Tillett has no control over the quality of the goods that Counter-
defendants provide in association with the KHROMA mark.

70. The Counter-defendants exercise joint control over the infringing
Khroma cosmetic products distributed in the United States. In particular, the Counter-
defendants jointly control the appearance of and substance of the cosmetic products
carrying the Khroma name. Each of the Counter-defendants had and has the ability to
prevent the infringement of the KROMA® mark. None of the Counter-defendants
have taken any action to cease such infringement, even after having received actual
notice of Tillett’s claims.

71.  Each Counterclaim Defendant is a joint tortfeasor and liable for the
wrongful conduct of the others. Each and every Counter-defendant acted in concert,
aided and abetted each other, and engaged in conduct constituting trademark
infringement in violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114(A)(1).

72.  As a direct, proximate, and foreseeable result of the Counter-defendants’
conduct and omissions alleged above, Tillett has suffered and will continue to suffer
damages in an amount to be determined at trial. Under the Lanham Act, Tillett is
entitled to both an award of damages to its own business attributable to the Counter-
defendants’ infringing conduct and to an award of the Counter-defendants’ profits
derived from their infringement. These amounts will be determined at trial by the trier
of fact, but are believed to be in no event less than $10 million, representing a
conservative estimate of profits and payments to Counter-defendants and damages to
Tillett’s business stemming from Counter-defendants’ violations of law. Tillett is
also entitled to treble damages under the Lanham Act due to the willful and extreme
nature of the Counter-defendants’ violations of law.

73.  As a direct and proximate result of the foregoing acts and conduct, Tillett
has sustained and will continue to sustain substantial, immediate, and irreparable

injury, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, including without limitation the
22
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1 Il 1oss of consumer goodwill. Tillett is informed and believes and on that basis avers

2 || that unless enjoined and restrained by this Court, the Counter-defendants will continue

3 || to engage in conduct violative of the Lanham Act. Tillett is entitled to preliminary

4 || and permanent injunctive relief.

5 SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

6 FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN PURSUANT TO 15 U.S.C. 1125(a)

7 [Against All Counter-defendants]

8 74.  Tillett repeats and realleges the allegations made in paragraphs 1 through

9 || 73 as if fully set forth herein.
10 75.  Tillett owns the KROMA® mark. Tillett and/or its predecessors in
11 || interest have used the mark continuously in U.S. commerce in connection with the
12 || KROMA® cosmetics line since at least 2004. Such use has occurred continuously and
13 || prior to Counter-defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark beginning in 2011.
14 76. Counter-defendants use the KHROMA mark in U.S. commerce in
15 || connection with the sale of their cosmetics products. This use is not and has never
16 || been authorized by Tillett.
17 77 The Counter-defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark in U.S. commerce
18 || in connection with Cosmetics is likely to cause consumer confusion, or to cause
19 || mistake and/or deceive consumers as to the affiliation, connection, or association of
20 || Tillett and Tillett’'s KROMA® cosmetics with Counter-defendants’ KHROMA
21 || cosmetics.
22 78.  The Counter-defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark in U.S. commerce
23 || in connection with cosmetics has already caused consumer confusion, mistake and/or
24 || deceived consumers as to the affiliation, connection, or association of Tillett and
25 || Tillet’s KROMA® cosmetics with Counter-defendants’ KHROMA cosmetics.
26 79.  The Counter-defendants used the KHROMA mark as alleged herein
27 || notwithstanding their prior knowledge of Tillett’s rights to the registered KROMA®
28 || mark.

23
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1 80. The Counter-defendants used the KHROMA mark in bad faith with the
2 1| intent to cause consumer confusion, mistake and/or deception.
3 81. The Counter-defendants each approved of, ratified and took acts in
4 || furtherance of the unauthorized use the KHROMA mark and each of the other actions
5 || complained of herein.
6 82.  Each of the Counter-defendants has financially benefited from the sale of
7 1| cosmetic products labeled with the KHROMA mark.
8 83. Fach of the Kardashian Sisters is a moving, active and conscious force
9 || behind the infringement of the KROMA® mark, and each has directly financially
10 || benefitted from the infringement.
11 84. The Counter-defendants exercise joint control over the infringing
12 || Khroma cosmetic products distributed in the United States. In particular, the Counter-
13 || defendants jointly control the appearance of and substance of the cosmetic products
14 || carrying the Khroma name. Each of the Counter-defendants had and has the ability to
15 || prevent the infringement of the KROMA® mark. None of the Counter-defendants
16 || have taken any action to cease such infringement, even after having received actual
17 || notice of Tillett’s claims.
18 85. Each Counter-defendant is a joint tortfeasor of the other Counter-
19 || defendants and is liable for the wrongful conduct of the other Counter-defendants.
20 86. Each and every Counter-defendant acted in concert, aided and abetted
21 || each other, and engaged in conduct constituting false designation of origin in violation
22 || of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).
23 87. As a direct, proximate, and foreseeable result of the Counter-defendants’
24 || conduct and omissions alleged above, Tillett has suffered and will continue to suffer
25 || damages in an amount to be determined at trial. Under the Lanham Act, Tillett is
26 || entitled to both an award of damages to its own business attributable to the Counter-
27 || defendants’ infringing conduct and to an award of the Counter-defendants’ profits
28 || derived from their infringement. These amounts will be determined at trial by the trier

24
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[S

of fact, but are believed to be in no event less than $10 million, representing a

2 || conservative estimate of profits and payments to Counter-defendants and damages to
3 || Tillett’s business stemming from Counter-defendants’ violations of law. Tillett is
4 || also entitled to treble damages under the Lanham Act due to the willful and extreme
5 || nature of the Counter-defendants’ violations of law.
6 88. As a direct and proximate result of the foregoing acts and conduct, Tillett
7 || has sustained and will continue to sustain substantial, immediate, and irreparable
8 || injury, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, including without limitation the
9 || loss of consumer goodwill. Tillett is informed and believes and on that basis avers
10 || that unless enjoined and restrained by this Court, the Counter-defendants will continue
11 || to engage in conduct violative of the Lanham Act. Tillett is entitled to preliminary
12 || and permanent injunctive relief.
13 THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
14 || TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT PURSUANT TO CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE
15 § 14200 ET SEQ.
16 [Against All Counter-defendants]
17 89. Tillett repeats and realleges the allegations made in paragraphs 1 through
18 || 88 as if fully set forth herein.
19 90. Tillett possesses a valid mark entitled to protection under California
20 || Business and Professions Code Sections 14200 er seq. (the “California Trademark
21 || Act”) — namely, the KROMA® mark. Tillett and/or its predecessors in interest have
22 || used the mark in commerce in California in connection with the Kroma cosmetics
23 || line. Such use has occurred continuously and prior to Counter-defendants’ use of the
24 || KHROMA mark beginning in 2011.
25 9]. Counter-defendants use the KHROMA mark in commerce in California
26 || connection with the sale of their cosmetics products. This use is not and has never
27 || been authorized by Tillett.
28 92. Counter-defendants’ use of the KHROMA mark is likely to cause

25
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1 || consumer confusion, or to cause mistake and/or deceive consumers as to the
2 || affiliation, connection, or association of Tillett and Tillett’s KROMA® cosmetic
3 || products line with the Counter-defendants’ KHROMA cosmetics products line.

4 93. The Counter-defendants used the KHROMA mark as alleged herein

5 || notwithstanding their prior knowledge of Tillett’s rights to the registered KROMA®

6 || mark.

7 94. The Counter-defendants used the KHROMA mark in bad faith, knowing

3 || that it would cause consumer confusion, mistake and/or deception.

9 95. The Counter-defendants each approved of, ratified and took acts in
10 || furtherance of the unauthorized use the KHROMA mark and each of the other actions
11 || complained of herein.

12 96. Each of the Counter-defendants has financially benefited from the sale of
13 || cosmetic products labeled with the KHROMA mark.
14 97. Each of the Kardashian Sisters is a moving, active and conscious force
15 || behind the infringement of the KROMA® mark, and each has directly financially
16 || benefitted from the infringement.
17 98. The Counter-defendants exercise joint control over the infringing
18 || Khroma cosmetic products distributed in the United States. In particular, the Counter-
19 || defendants jointly control the appearance of and substance of the cosmetic products
20 || carrying the Khroma name. Each of the Counter-defendants had and has the ability to
21 || prevent the infringement of the KROMA® mark. None of the Counter-defendants
22 || have taken any action to cease such infringement, even after having received actual
23 || notice of Tillett’s claims.
24 00, Tillett has no control over the quality of the goods that Counter-
25 || defendants provide in association with the KHROMA mark.
26 100. Each Counter-defendant is a joint tortfeasor of the other Counter-
77 || defendants and is liable for the wrongful conduct of the other Counter-defendants.
28 101. Each and every Counter-defendant acted in concert, aided and abetted
26 '
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each other, and engaged in conduct constituting trademark infringement in violation of
the California Trademark Act.

102. As a direct, proximate, and foreseeable result of the Counter-defendants’
conduct and omissions alleged above, Tillett has suffered and will continue to suffer
damages in an amount to be determined at trial. Under the California Trademark Act,
Tillett is entitled to both an award of damages to its own business attributable to the
Counter-defendants’ infringing conduct and to an award of the Counter-defendants’

profits derived from their infringement. These amounts will be determined at trial by
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the trier of fact, but are believed to be in no event less than $10 million, representing a
10 || conservative estimate of profits and payments to Counter-defendants and damages to
11 || Tillett’s business stemming from Counter-defendants’ violations of law.

12 103. As a direct and proximate result of the foregoing acts and conduct, Tillett
13 || has sustained and will continue to sustain substantial, immediate, and irreparable
14 || injury, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, including without limitation the
15 || loss of consumer goodwill. Tillett is informed and believes and on that basis avers
16 || that unless enjoined and restrained by this Court, the Counter-defendants will continue
17 || to engage in conduct violative of the California Trademark Act. Tillett is entitled to

18 || preliminary and permanent injunctive relief.

19 FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

20 UNFAIR COMPETITION

21 PURSUANT TO CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE §§ 17200 et seq

22 [Against All Counter-defendants|

23 104. Tillett repeats and realleges the allegations made in paragraphs 1 through
24 || 103 as if fully set forth herein.

25 105. Tillett owns the KROMA® mark, which is a valid mark entitled to

26 || protection under the Lanham Act.
27 106. The Counter-defendants’ conduct in using the KHROMA mark in U.S.
28 || commerce constitutes an unlawful and unfair business act or practice taken in

27
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deliberate disregard for Tillett’s rights under the Lanham Act and under the California
Trademark Act.

107. The Counter-defendants’ unlawful infringement of the KROMA® mark
was intentional, willful, and with reckless disregard and indifference to Tillett’s rights.

108. The Counter-defendants have each benefited from their unlawful and
unfair business acts and practices.

109. The Counter-defendants each approved of, ratified and took acts in
furtherance of the unauthorized use the KHROMA mark and each of the other actions
complained of herein.

110. Each of the Counter-defendants has financially benefited from the sale of
cosmetic products labeled with the KHROMA mark.

111. The Counter-defendants exercise joint control over the infringing
Khroma cosmetic products distributed in California. In particular, the Counter-
defendants jointly control the appearance of and substance of the cosmetic products
carrying the Khroma name. Each of the Counter-defendants had and has the ability to
prevent the infringement of the KROMA® mark. None of the Counter-defendants
have taken any action to cease such infringement, even after having received actual
notice of Tillett's claims.

112. Each of the Kardashian Sisters is a moving, active and conscious force
behind the infringement of the KROMA® mark and the unlawful and unfair business
acts and practices alleged herein.

113. Each Counter-defendant is a joint tortfeasor of the other Counter-
defendants and is liable for the wrongful conduct of the other Counter-defendants.

114. Each and every Counter-defendant acted in concert, aided and abetted
each other, and engaged in conduct constituting an illegal business practice prohibited
by the California Unfair Competition Law, California Business and Professions Code
§§ 17200, et seq. (the “UCL™), by and through their violations of the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. 1125(A) and of the California Trademark Act, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 14200
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1 || et seq.
2 115. As a direct, proximate, and foreseeable result of the Counter-defendants’
3 || conduct and omissions alleged herein, Tillett has suffered and will continue to suffer
4 || injury-in-fact. Under the UCL, Tillett is entitled to restitution of Counter-defendants’
5 || ill-gotten gains stemming from their violations of law in an amount to be determined
6 || at trial.
7 116. As a direct and proximate result of the foregoing acts and conduct, Tillett
8 || has sustained and will continue to sustain substantial, immediate, and irreparable
9 || injury, for which there is no adequate remedy at law, including without limitation the
10 || loss of consumer goodwill. Tillett is informed and believes and on that basis avers
11 || that unless enjoined and restrained by this Court, the Counter-defendants will continue
12 || to engage in conduct violative of California law. Tillett is entitled to preliminary and
13 || permanent injunctive relief.
14 PRAYER FOR RELIEF
15 WHEREFORE, Tillett respectfully requests that the Court enter judgment
16 || against the Counter-defendants and for Tillett and prays as follows:
17 A. That the Court deny Boldface’s request for declaratory judgment in its
18 entirety;
19 B. That the Boldface Complaint be dismissed its entirety with prejudice;
20 C. For permanent injunctive relief preventing Counter-defendants, along
21 || with their assignees, transferees, employees, agents, owners and representatives, and
22 || all other persons, firms or entities acting in concert or participation with them, from
23 || using the mark KHROMA or any derivation thereof utilizing the KROMA® mark in
24 || connection with cosmetics goods and services, in any manner, including but not
25 || limited to preventing them from:
26 i. Using, displaying, advertising, or promoting the KHROMA and
27 KROMA® marks in connection with cosmetics; and
28 ii. Using, displaying, advertising, or promoting the KHROMA and
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1 KROMA® marks in connection with any goods or services related
2 to cosmetics, including without limitation haircare, soaps, and
3 lotions; and
4 iii. Assisting any other person or entity from engaging in the conduct
5 described in subparagraphs (i) and (ii) above.
6 B. For an award of damages caused by Counter-defendants’ unlawful
7 || conduct in an amount to be ascertained at trial;
8 C. For an award of Counter-defendants’ profits stemming from their
9 || unlawful conduct in an amount to be ascertained at trial;
10 D. For an award of damages for corrective advertising to in an amount to be
11 || ascertained at trial.
12 E.  For treble damages pursuant to the Lanham Act;
13 F.  For prejudgment interest;
14 G. For restitution of Counter-defendants’ ill-gotten gains and such sums as
15 || would otherwise have been owed or paid to Tillett absent Counter-defendants’
16 || violations of law, in an amount to be ascertained at trial;
17 H. For Plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees pursuant to the Lanham Act or in the
18 || alternative, pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200 et seq.;
19 I. For costs of suit incurred in this action;
20 || //
21 || //
22 || //
23 || //
24 || //
25 || //
26 || //
27 || 1/
28 || //
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J.  For punitive damages under California Civil Code section 3294 or in the

alternative as otherwise available; and

K. For such other further relief that the Court may deem just and proper.

DATED: January 9, 2013 FAYER GIPSONLLP .
A Limited Liabiity Partnership
ELLIOT B. GIPSON
GREGORY A. FAYER

By

ELLIOT B. GIPSON U
Attorneys for Defendant

BY LEE TILLETT, INC.
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JURY DEMAND
Tillett hereby demands a trial by jury of all issues in the Complaint and
Counterclaim Complaint.
DATED: January 9, 2013 FAYER GIPSON LLP

A Limited Liabiity Partnership
ELLIOT B. GIPSON
GREGORY A.FAYER

o A

ELLIOT B. GIPSON
Attorneys for Defendant

BY LEE TILLETT, INC.
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